ELYON COLLEGE FACULTY HANDBOOK

1400 West 6 Street Brooklyn, N.Y. 11204 Tel. (718) 259-5600

Table of Contents

Message From The President	3
Mission And Philosophy	4
Administrative Structure	5
PRESIDENT/CEO	5
DEAN FOR ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS	5
ASSOCIATE DEAN FOR ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS	5
DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATION	5
ADMISSIONS AND JUDAIC STUDIES PROGRAM COORDINATOR	
ASSISTANT DEAN FOR ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS	
DIRECTOR OF INFORMATION AND LIBRARY SERVICES	
ADMINISTRATIVE COORDINATOR - EVENING SESSION	
DIRECTOR OF PLACEMENT AND OUTREACH (proposed)FINANCIAL AID OFFICER (proposed)	
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT FOR PLACEMENT AND OUTREACH	
COMMUNITY SERVICE/WORK PRACTICUM SUPERVISOR	
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT STAFF	
MAINTENANCE AND HOUSEKEEPING STAFF	
THE FACULTY	
POWERS OF THE FACULTIES	
DEPARTMENTAL CHAIRPERSONS	
Faculty Appointments And Conditions Of Employment	7
Faculty Rank Promotion Policies	9
Due Process Practices	
Termination Of Appointment	16
Faculty Benefits	17
Faculty Responsibilities And Class Management	20
Grading Practices	23
Leave Policies	
Faculty Conference	27
Professional Growth and Development for Faculty and Staff	29
Monitoring and Documenting Attendance	
Supervision and Evaluation of Faculty and Staff	
FORMS	33
FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA	
ANNUAL FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORM	35
FACULTY CLASSROOM OBSERVATION FORM	
STUDENT COURSE EVALUATION	
STUDENT SERVICES TUTORIAL ASSISTANCE	
STUDENT ADVISORY FORM	41

Note	42
Acknowledgement Form	43

Message From The President

Elyon College affirms the belief that every human being has the potential to reach enormous heights. Dreams and aspirations can be fulfilled when personal commitment is combined with dedicated support from family, friends and mentor. Elyon College is committed to enable personal hopes and educational goals to be achieve in an atmosphere of trust and support.

The core success of the students' college experience is determined by its faculty; as such, we encourage our faculty to become part and parcel of the total Elyon community in helping to achieve their goals and objectives.

1 look forward to working with you for the benefit of Elyon College.

Sincerely,

Rabbi Chaim A. Waldman President

Please Note:

Some items mentioned in this handbook such as the faculty conference are in the planning stages as the college evolves and grows. In the interim, some of the functions mentioned may be substituted by the faculty executive committee or the Dean/Associate Dean for Academic and Student Services. If you have any questions regarding any particular information in this handbook and need clarification you may direct them to the President.

Mission And Philosophy

Elyon College firmly believes that every individual was created by G-d to contribute to this world in a meaningful fashion through the maximum utilization of his/her particular abilities and talents. Therefore, our College has been designed to foster within each student a sense of self-esteem and a desire to make a positive change in society at large. We challenge our students to achieve their utmost and inculcate them with the knowledge and skills that fully actualize their potential, developing their respect for productivity and love for lifelong learning.

At our College, we believe that, in order to achieve utmost self-actualization and self-sufficiency, an individual must have the training that will lead to meaningful and constructive employment. We teach students the skills necessary to utilize their talents and become gainfully employed and successful in their ongoing educational endeavors, higher education or academic pursuits. Students are encouraged to develop a sense of social responsibility and become active participants in our global community, thereby making a positive difference in society.

The mission of Elyon College is two-fold: to prepare individuals for service as Jewish community workers and leaders, as well as to prepare individuals for careers in the field of business. This is accomplished in an atmosphere that promotes self-development and a commitment to contributing selflessly to others. Consistent with its stated mission, Elyon College supports the following goals and objectives:

- To provide educational opportunities through a concentrated and structured program of study that prepares students for education-related careers and community leadership
- To provide educational opportunities that enable students to acquire the required skills that will allow them to gain employment in the fields of accounting and business technology.
- To maintain the programs that are directly related to the mission of the college, since they will prepare students for gainful employment, further their education, and achieve their career goals in a supportive and caring learning environment. Elyon College students will learn to be proud of their capabilities, responsible citizen's and ready, willing and able to become meaningful contributors to their communities.
- To encourage caring, commitment, service, professionalism, and ethical practices.
- To develop and offer curricula that provide an integral sequence of courses leading to the acquisition of coherent, reliable, and current knowledge
- To incorporate learning experiences that foster the ability to think critically, to work cooperatively, and utilize effective communication skills
- To maintain on-going contact with the community through organizations and agencies
- To monitor programs on a continuous basis to assess their outcomes
- To provide the foundations that will enable Elyon College graduates to pursue education at four-year institutions and instill a strong commitment to lifelong learning
- To offer students close personal attention and advisement to ensure individual success
- To provide graduates with assistance with job placement, and opportunities for continued education
- To provide appropriate student services, including financial aid, academic advising, career placement, and other relevant support
- To foster the development of a highly qualified faculty that has a strong educational background and significant practical experience
- To support the academic achievement of all students and to allow students who choose and qualify to accelerate through the applied Baccalaureate Degree, Associate Degree and Certificate programs
- To facilitate the academic programs with appropriate facilities, up-to-date equipment and timely access to learning resources.

In a supportive and caring learning environment, Elyon students will learn to be proud of their capabilities, responsible citizens, and ready, willing and able to become meaningful contributors to their communities.

Administrative Structure

PRESIDENT/CEO

The administration of the College is the responsibility of the President and his staff. The President is the chief academic and administrative officer and serves as the liaison between the faculty, administrative staff, the students, and the Board of Trustees. The President directly supervises the activities of all other administrators and is also responsible for finance. The President reports to the Board of Trustees.

DEAN FOR ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS

The Dean of Academic and Student Affairs (Dean) supervises the core learning experience at the college and the development of curricula. The Dean organizes the collection of pertinent college data. The Dean also assists in developing responses to inquiries, reviews, evaluations and reports relating to academic affairs and supervises the Department Chairs, including academic, career and personal counseling, and extracurricular activities. The Dean reports to the President.

The Dean is also the chief student personnel officer at the college. The Dean supervises the organization and delivery of student services, including academic, career and personal counseling, and extracurricular activities. The Dean supervises admissions, advisement, and counseling. The Dean reports to the President.

ASSOCIATE DEAN FOR ACADEMIC AND STUDENT AFFAIRS

The Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs collaborates with and assists the Dean with his/her functions. The Associate Dean is also responsible, along with the Assistant Dean for Administrative Operations, for creating, maintaining and periodically auditing faculty and administration files and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested and may assume the duties of the Dean in the event of the Dean's absence. The Associate Dean reports to the Dean.

DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATION

The Director of Administration oversees the inflow of applications from prospective students. The Director maintains student records, assists in the admissions process and decisions, determines who is eligible for graduation, and provides official transcripts. The Director is responsible for payroll submission, purchasing, invoice reconciliation, accounts payable and receivable and general maintenance and correspondence pertaining to school finance. The Director is also responsible for creating, maintaining and periodically auditing non-teaching staff files, and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Director of Administration reports to the President.

ADMISSIONS AND JUDAIC STUDIES PROGRAM COORDINATOR

The Admissions and Judaic Studies Program Coordinator is responsible for the recruiting, interviewing prospective candidates for admission and enrolling of students and explaining the various programs, which are offered at the institution. The Coordinator does intake and counseling for students' personal needs to ensure that students can attend the institution with a minimum of disturbance. The coordinator is responsible for verifying information about each student with his current high school, college or university and evaluating this information against Elyon's requirements to determine acceptance into the college. The Admissions and Judaic Studies Program Coordinator collaborates with the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs to schedule the Judaic Studies classes and exams. The coordinator plans speakers to enrich and enhance the Judaic Studies program. The coordinator assists the Associate Dean in reviewing all teacher made instructional and supplementary material and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Admissions and Judaic Studies Program Coordinator reports to the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs.

ASSISTANT DEAN FOR ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS

The Assistant Dean for Administrative Operations is the assistant liaison to the New York State Education Department and ACCET accreditation personnel. The Assistant Dean supervises all communications to the New York State Education Department and to the college's accreditation agency. Once the college is accredited the Assistant Dean will assure continued compliance with all ACCET standards and requirements. The Assistant Dean is also responsible, along with the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs, for creating, maintaining and periodically auditing faculty and administration files, and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Assistant Dean for Administrative Operations reports to the President.

DIRECTOR OF INFORMATION AND LIBRARY SERVICES

The Director of Information and Library Services is responsible for all library services and activities at the College. The functions of the Director relate to such activities as maintaining the College website, the purchasing of materials, maintaining card catalogs and reference services, evaluating and purchasing equipment for the library, data collection and reports, maintaining records and files and providing information literature for the professional growth of the staff, and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Director of Information and Library Services reports to the President

ADMINISTRATIVE COORDINATOR – EVENING SESSION

The Administrative Coordinator—Evening Session oversees the inflow of applications from prospective students and is responsible for verifying information about each student in the evening session. The Administrative Coordinator enrolls students and maintains student records for the evening session, and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Administrative Coordinator reports to the President. Elyon has had an evening program in the past. Presently there is no evening program but there are plans to restart the evening program.

DIRECTOR OF PLACEMENT AND OUTREACH (proposed)

Director of Placement is responsible for placing students at appropriate community service/work practicum sites and helping them obtain compatible employment upon completion. In addition, he/she is responsible for community outreach, public relations and advertisements and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Director works closely with the President and Director of Administration. The Director reports to the President.

FINANCIAL AID OFFICER

The Financial Aid Officer is responsible for administering the US Department of Education and NY State financial aid grants at the institution. The Financial Aid Officer ascertains that the programs adhere to all required rules and regulations that monies are disbursed properly, and that financial aid records are kept in an orderly and secure manner. The Financial Aid Officer participates in the processing of student refunds. The Financial Aid Officer may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Financial Aid Officer reports to the President.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT FOR PLACEMENT AND OUTREACH

The Assistant is responsible for aiding students obtain compatible employment upon completion. In addition, he/she is responsible for assisting in community outreach, public relations and advertisements and works closely with the President and admissions and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Assistant reports to the President.

COMMUNITY SERVICE/WORK PRACTICUM SUPERVISOR

The Community Service/Work Practicum Supervisor collaborates with the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs to plan, coordinate, and supervise the Community Service/Work Practicum Program. The Supervisor accompanies the students to the work practicum sites and supervises model lessons. The supervisor may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Supervisor reports to the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs.

NETWORK ADMINISTRATOR

The Network Administrator is responsible for the maintenance and technical support of the institution's computer network, maintenance of hardware and software, purchasing of computer equipment and disposing of obsolete computer equipment, and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Network Administrator reports to the President. Presently Elyon's network is covered by the high school network which shares our building space during the day.

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT STAFF

The Administrative Support Staff is responsible for assisting in the various capacities to which he/she is assigned, such as attendance, placement and academic record keeping, student job placement, answering phones, document duplication, taking messages and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The Administrative Support Staff report to the Director of Administration.

MAINTENANCE AND HOUSEKEEPING STAFF

The maintenance and housekeeping staff is responsible for the upkeep and cleanliness of the facilities, submitting orders for needed supplies for the proper building maintenance, is responsible to conduct minor repairs as needed throughout the facilities and to notify administration when major repair beyond the scope of his/her capability is needed so appropriate repairman may be contacted. The maintenance/housekeeping staff opens the building at beginning of the day and closes and services the building at the end of the day and may from time to time perform additional duties as requested. The maintenance/housekeeping staff report to the Director of Administration.

THE FACULTY

The faculty consists of the President, Dean, Dept. Chairs, the Director of Library Services and all regular and visiting officers of instruction who have received full-time appointments as Professor, Associate Professor, Assistant Professor, Instructor or Lecturer. Other administrative officers whose principal functions are academic may be given faculty status.

POWERS OF THE FACULTIES

The faculty of the College shall be complete in itself, but under the supervision of the President and subject to the approval of the Board. It shall have jurisdiction over the educational program and the internal affairs of the College, including such matters as requirements for admission and for graduation, curriculum and instruction, textbooks, examinations and grading,

degrees and prizes, and student academic affairs. The faculty participates in the administration of the College through Faculty Conferences.

DEPARTMENTAL CHAIRPERSONS

Departmental Chairpersons are appointed, after consultation with the President, by the Dean for Academic and Student Affairs and shall serve at the pleasure of the Dean for a term of two years beginning on September 1 of the academic year. This position can be renewed at the discretion of the Dean. Departmental Chairpersons implement and carry out the academic policies and the mission of Elyon College within their specific department. They are the academic and administrative managers of their department.

Faculty Appointments And Conditions Of Employment

FACULTY APPOINTMENTS

Full-time faculty appointments are approved by the President as vested by the Board of Trustees upon the recommendation of the President. Appointment procedures will generally originate with the Dean/Associate Dean for Academic and Students Services or the Department Chair who will bring possible candidates to the attention of the President. Frequently a search committee, comprised of faculty members, will be called upon to screen and recommend candidates in the applicant pool. Recommendations to the President are first approved by the Dean/Associate of Academic and Student Affairs.

Every appointment of a faculty member is made by a formal agreement signed by the candidate and the President of the college, and states the rank, salary, length of appointment, and any special conditions relative to the appointment. Acceptance of the appointment is considered an indication of the mutual willingness on the part of the College and the appointee to be bound by all the terms of the agreement and by the Faculty Handbook in matters not covered by the agreement. Initial full-time appointments are usually for a twelve-month academic year, beginning in September.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT (EEO)

Elyon College is an Equal Opportunity Employer and does not discriminate against employees or applicants for employment on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, handicap or disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or status as a Vietnam era or special disabled veteran, in accordance with applicable federal, state and local laws. The College is committed to a diverse faculty within its overall Mission statement.

This policy is adopted by Elyon College pursuant to its commitment to the principles of equal opportunity and specifically pledges the College to a policy of non-discrimination against any person in employment or in any of its programs.

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) TITLE I

The ADA is a civil rights law that provides protection to people with disabilities and furthers their goal of more fully participating in American society. It was signed and enacted July 26, 1990.

Elyon College does not discriminate against a qualified individual because of the disability of such individual in regard to: job application procedures, hiring, advancement or discharge of employees, employee compensation, job training, and other terms, conditions and privileges of employment.

The assignment of a disabled person to a position shall be based on whether or not the person can perform the essential functions of the employment position in a reasonable manner. Proper placement

means using the "whole person" concept, assessing the candidate on the basis of his/her total capacity, experience, training, aptitudes, skills, and physical qualifications. All these factors will be considered in order to place the disabled person in a job where the impairment does not interfere with job performance.

ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Elyon College is committed to the pursuit of truth and to its transmission. The integrity of the College as an institution of higher learning requires proper autonomy and freedom. This freedom is the freedom to examine data, to question assumptions, to be guided by evidence, to be a learner, and to be a scholar. Such freedom implies that any faculty member whose teaching is questioned should be subject to the judgment of one's peers only in accordance with the accepted rules of academic due process. It also implies the active, defined, and recognized role of the faculty in those policy-making decisions, which affect the educational program.

The obligation of the faculty is to distinguish in their teaching between personal and partisan opinions and convictions grounded in sources and methods appropriate to their respective disciplines. The faculty member should, to the best of his/her ability, present materials in a manner that respects the cultures and sensitivities of the students. The obligation of the student is to be a responsible participant in the academic activities of Elyon College.

The College further endorses the 1940 Statement of Principles of Academic Freedom of the American Association of University Professors. Each faculty member is expected to uphold the goals, aims and mission of Elyon College.

OWNERSHIP OF COURSES AND COURSE MATERIALS

Development of courses and course materials is part of the faculty member's service obligation to the College. Therefore, it is the stated College policy that all courses, course materials, and course-related intellectual property, whether related to degree or certificate courses, developed by faculty for Elyon College courses or programs are the legal property of Elyon College. All rights to such property shall revert in total to Elyon College. Further, development of any courses will be consistent with the Elyon College model. Any deviation from this model must be approved in advance in writing by the President and Dean of Academic and Student Affairs.

FACULTY APPOINTMENTS AND CONTRACTS

A full time faculty appointment is a written agreement between Elyon College and the individual faculty member for a specific period of time (term appointment). Elyon College in its sole discretion will determine to reappoint faculty and whether such a reappointment should be for one or for multiple years. Elyon College may give notice to a full-time faculty member that his/her term appointment will not be renewed as follows:

- 1. Not later than April 1 of the first academic year of service if the appointment expires at the end of that year; or, if a one-year appointment terminates during an academic year at least three months in advance of its termination.
- 2. Not later than December 15 after the first year of service if the appointment expires at the end of that year; or if a multiple year appointment terminates during an academic year, at least six months in advance of termination.

While Elyon College will endeavor to provide notice to full-time faculty as described above, Elyon reserves the absolute right to, at any time, notify a faculty member in writing that his/her appointment will not be renewed.

SALARY PAYMENTS

Faculty salaries are ordinarily paid in 12 monthly installments, unless otherwise stated. Faculty contracts are effective as of September 1.

TEACHING LOAD: FACULTY

The normal teaching load for a full-time appointment is four courses per semester. Faculty members who have distinguished research competence may be given reduced teaching loads at the discretion of the Dean. The College expects that full-time faculty members will devote themselves full-time to the service of the College.

An overload may be agreed upon with individual faculty members at hourly compensation commensurate with established adjunct salary rates at rank. Laboratory hours are credited as part of the load, equated at one-half of normal teaching time.

Release time may be accrued by a faculty member who assumes a role of institutional leadership takes on a special research project or otherwise fulfills a special assignment.

All overloads, release time and extra laboratory assignments must be approved in writing by the Dean.

IMMIGRATION REFORM & CONTROL ACT COMPLIANCE (I-9)

It is Elyon's policy to conform to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. The College is required to verify the work authorization, identity and citizenship of all employees and applicants for employment who are hired. Government Form I-9 must be completed on every new employee prior to or no later than three days after the starting date. The 1-9 form must be retained in the office of the Director of Administration.

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

Full-time faculty of the college who desire outside paid or volunteer activities requiring more than one day per week of participation must file a statement in advance, describing the activity with the Office of the Dean for written approval by the President and the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs. Failure to do so will be grounds for termination. Outside employment should be of an appropriate professional nature, which would enhance the skills and the standing in the College and community of the faculty member. No full-time faculty members will be permitted to hold another full-time academic position without prior consent. Each year in June, all full-time faculty members must submit the standard Report on Outside Activities during that past year to the Dean.

Faculty Rank Promotion Policies

Academic ranks for faculty of the College are Professor, Associate Professor, Assistant Professor, Instructor and Lecturer. Full-time faculty members shall initially be assigned rank in accordance with their teaching ability, scholarly production, years of experience, service to the academic community, and dedication to the ideals of the College as expressed in its statement of Mission and Philosophy. Reciprocity may be granted to adjunct faculty members who have been evaluated for rank at comparable academic institutions. All other part-time faculty will usually be classified as adjunct lecturers.

There is no necessary limit to the number of years which a faculty member may serve in a given rank. Assuming the availability of a budgeting line, a faculty member on the level of Instructor who earns his/her terminal degree shall generally be advanced to the rank of Assistant Professor with salary adjustment at the beginning of the next academic year. With this exception, promotion from one rank to

the next shall generally require intervals of five years between promotions. The College may wish to consider prior service at other institutions of higher education.

The promotion process will generally originate with an application by the faculty member (who may be encouraged to do so by his/her Chair or the Dean). The faculty member will prepare his/her own dossier, including all biographical papers, recommendations, scholarly publications, and other pertinent documents. These should be forwarded to the Department Chair.

The Department Chair will also be requested to submit his/her recommendations concerning the promotion to their Committee. A Special Promotions and Personnel Committee composed of Faculty and Administrative personnel will be created. The recommendation of the Committee, together with the recommendations of the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs, will be sent to the President for his decision. The President will write to the candidate indicating his affirmation of any promotion. For promotion to senior ranks, evaluations by outside scholars may be required. The Promotion Application Form is available in the Office of the Dean. (See Exhibits)

FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED FOR PROMOTION

The evaluation of faculty performance by the Committee, for the purpose of promotion, will take into account the faculty member's teaching ability, professional growth and research, and service to the institution and the community. The Committee will generally look for evidence of excellence in each of these areas. Listed below are examples of outstanding contributions, which the committee may consider.

These lists are not intended to be exhaustive, but instead, suggestive of ways in which faculty members might exhibit outstanding performance. The faculty member is encouraged to provide details and documentation when available in his/her submission.

A. TEACHING:

- Teaching competence that is documented by student evaluations and peer observations.
- Teaching that is recognized by the faculty member's professional peers on a state, regional, or national level.
- Using innovative and effective teaching methods, as measured by student and/or colleague evaluations and/or by results of appropriate standardized tests (where applicable).
- Developing and implementing new teaching strategies and techniques that promote the goals of liberal learning (e.g., independent and critical thought, written and oral communication, integration); that incorporate an international/inter-cultural dimension in a course, minor, or major; and that enhance substantively the teaching of a course or program within one's discipline.

B. PROFESSIONAL GROWTH AND RESEARCH:

- Publishing a scholarly book or article in a recognized and refereed scholarly journal.
- Taking a leadership role in a professional organization of the faculty member's peers on the state, regional, or national level.
- Completing, or making substantial documented progress on a research project closely related to the faculty member's teaching and with the likelihood of furthering knowledge in the faculty member's discipline.
- Becoming proficient in the use of technology as it applies to one's discipline and using this proficiency for research or incorporating it into one's teaching.
- Writing a successful grant proposal, which either gives evidence of, or promotes the faculty

member's professional growth and either improves the college's program or adds to the college's material resources.

C. SERVICE:

- Exercising a leadership role in the development of the college's academic program, by revising or modifying it so as to make it more effective in achieving the college's mission;
- Developing a new degree program or revising an existing program in such a way as to enhance the College's image and attract students;
- Participating in student recruitment in an unusually effective way, e.g., by developing, sponsoring, and conducting special programs to bring prospective students to campus; by visiting groups of perspective students and admissions counselors;
- Making a singular and substantial contribution as chair of an important committee or task force or as the director of a special project;
- Giving outstanding service as a moderator of a student activity, as attested to by the Dean;
- Contributing significantly by developing new courses, new degree or certificate programs, workshops, conferences, or other experiences in continuing professional education;
- Participating directly and effectively in the College's fund-raising efforts and development efforts;
- Advising students with unusual effectiveness, as measured by student evaluations, retention statistics for one's advisees, and as attested to by the Dean;
- Being available on campus for students and faculty every class day to an exemplary degree;
- Service to the larger community.

EVALUATION

In an effort to assist faculty in improving their teaching skills, the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Services or Chairs of departments or their designees will regularly observe each member of their area of responsibility in a classroom situation and submit a written report of the observation to the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs. Faculty members are evaluated on an annual basis.

New faculty members are preferably to be evaluated during their first semester of teaching and are given special attention in the evaluation process.

A request for faculty observation may be initiated by the Office of the Dean, or Departmental Chairperson, or the faculty member. Faculty members are presented with a copy of the observation form and are given an opportunity to respond in writing concerning the observation. The Department Chairperson also maintains copies of observations, which are discussed during the Chairperson's Annual Review. Students also have an opportunity to provide feedback on faculty instruction as part of the Student Course Evaluation.

See the Policy and Procedures on Supervision and Evaluation of Faculty and Staff at the end of this Handbook.

See the Classroom Observation Form, Annual Faculty Evaluation Form, and Performance Evaluation Form, and Faculty Performance Evaluation Criteria at the end of this manual.

PERSONNEL FILES

Personnel files of faculty members shall be maintained under secure conditions in the Office of the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs, and shall contain all official papers concerning appointments, recommendations, promotions, evaluations, evidence of research, and other matters concerning the professional activities of the faculty member. These files are open for inspection only to the individual concerned and to authorized administrative personnel. Full-time faculty members are expected to update their curricula vitae annually for their personnel files.

OPPORTUNITIES FOR PERSONAL GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT

Elyon College encourages its faculty to engage in activities that help develop their personal growth. It is recommended that they participate in at least two professional development activities per year. Whenever a faculty member wants to participate in a professional development activity such as professional workshops/seminars or wishes to join a professional organization of peers, then the following procedures should be followed:

- 1. Faculty members should submit in writing to the Chair of their department or Dean a description of the professional workshop/seminar and a request for leave from the regular assigned duties at Elyon College, if the professional activities will conflict with their regular schedule.
- Likewise, a request to join a professional association should be submitted in writing with a detailed description of the association and why joining the association will benefit the faculty member and Elyon College.
- 3. Upon review and approval of their request Elyon College will make efforts to find appropriate substitutes to replace the faculty member while they participate in their professional development activities.
- 4. Elyon College will pay for faculty members to attend either a workshop/seminar or for membership in a professional association up to \$100 annually or 50% of the total cost, whichever is less.

See the Policy and Procedures on Professional Growth and Development for Faculty and Staff at the end of this Handbook.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY/AFFIRMATIVE ACTION POLICY

Elyon College recruits, hires, trains and promotes employees without regard to sex, age, color, creed, marital status, medical condition, national origin, race, religion, sexual orientation, or disabled veteran status. Hiring and promotion decisions are in accord with equal employment opportunity principles imposing only requirements which are job-related. Elyon College will ensure that all personnel actions such as compensation, benefits, training, education, tuition assistance, transfer, demotion, termination, and layoff, social and recreational programs will be administered without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin.

Elyon College expects all employees to demonstrate sensitivity to and respect for all other employees and to demonstrate commitment to Elyon College's equal employment opportunity and affirmative action objectives.

DRUG-FREE WORK PLACE

The Drug-Free Work Place Act of 1988 requires that the College, as a recipient of federal grants, to maintain a drug-free work place and inform all employees of its policy.

The illegal use or abuse of drugs that impair a person's ability to perform his or her job responsibilities is prohibited. In addition, the sale, manufacture, possession or use of illegal drugs on the College's campuses or college sponsored/organized activities is strictly prohibited. Employees are required to notify the College if they are convicted of any criminal drug violation. Elyon College must then report this conviction to the federal agency with which the College does business.

Any staff member who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

SMOKING

In compliance with the New York City Clean Indoor Air Act and Elyon College's intent to provide a safe and healthful work environment, smoking is prohibited in all College facilities. This applies to private offices as well as all public areas. This policy applies equally to all employees and will be strictly enforced.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT STATEMENT

Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature that tends to create a hostile or offensive work environment, including, but not limited to: unsolicited verbal comments and harassment; sexist remarks about a person's body or sexual activities; patting, pinching or unnecessary touching; subtle pressures or demands for sexual favors accompanied by implicit or overt threats concerning employment or student status; and physical or sexual assault.

Any student or employee of the Elyon College who is a victim of a sexual offense in the facility or an Elyon College-related activity must report the incidence at once to the Director. An investigation will take place. Disciplinary action may include suspension or termination of employment and/or being reported to the appropriate governmental or law enforcement agencies, depending on the nature and substance of the grievance.

CAMPUS SECURITY

Elyon College makes every effort to provide a safe environment for its students. If a crime is committed in the facility, Elyon College's personnel are available to assist students.

As required by the U.S. Department of Education, Elyon publishes all known occurrences of crimes committed on campus. These statistics are available in the Director's office and are also part of the orientation materials.

If a crime is committed, a police report must be completed and filed. Students are required to report any and all occurrences of a crime to Elyon College's personnel. If a sexual assault occurs on campus, the victim and witnesses to the crime must report the incident to Elyon College administration. The police will be contacted.

Due Process Practices

GRIEVANCE GUIDELINES

The Faculty Executive Committee serves as a Board of Appeal for faculty grievances. Faculty wishing to file a grievance should submit details in writing to the Faculty Executive Committee. The Committee functions in a confidential manner, reporting directly to the President.

REVIEW OF FACULTY GRIEVANCES

If any faculty member believes that his/her rights have been violated in such matters as academic freedom, suspension or dismissal for cause, assignment of teaching duties, issues relating to propriety of conduct and sexual harassment, disciplinary actions taken or other matters, he/she may petition the Committee in writing for consideration. Disciplinary actions or suspension will remain in force until the appeal process is completed.

The Committee contains at least three members of the faculty. They are appointed by the President. If a member of the Committee has a conflict of interest regarding the matter presented for review, he/she should be replaced by an ad hoc substitute chosen by the President. The petition shall set forth in detail the nature of the grievance and shall state against whom the grievance is directed. It shall contain other facts or other data, which the petitioner deems pertinent to his/her case. A copy of the petition shall be submitted within ten (10) working days after the action taken which is the source of the grievance.

After consultation with the persons against whom the grievance is directed, the Committee shall decide whether or not the facts merit a detailed investigation. Submission of a petition will not automatically entail investigation or detailed consideration thereof. The Committee will first seek to bring about settlement by informal methods. If, in the opinion of the Committee, such a settlement is not possible or is not appropriate, the Committee shall hold a grievance hearing within ten (10) working days after the receipt of the grievance petition. The Committee will report its findings and make recommendations to the petitioner and to the person(s) against whom the grievance was filed within five (5) working days after the hearing. The Committee may also make recommendations to the President.

Where a violation of academic freedom is alleged, it is of cardinal importance to the faculty and the administration to determine whether substantial grounds for the allegation exists, (see section on Academic Freedom elsewhere in the Faculty Handbook). The faculty member who is bringing the grievance is responsible for stating the grounds upon which his/her allegations are based, and the burden of proof shall rest upon him/her.

In summary, the functions of the Committee in the grievance process are as follows:

- To determine whether or not the matter merits consideration by the Committee;
- To seek to settle the matter by informal methods;
- If the matter is unresolved, to decide whether or not to recommend redress of the grievance to appropriate administrative officers;
- To provide copies of its report and recommendation to the faculty member who petitions the Committee, to the President, and to the person(s) against whom the grievance is lodged.

APPEAL TO THE PRESIDENT

If a faculty member wishes to pursue his/her grievance(s) after action of the Faculty Executive Committee, he/she may appeal to the President. The President may appoint a Special Grievance Committee or may choose to respond based on the findings of the Faculty Executive Committee. If a Special Grievance Committee is appointed to hear the petition, it shall be composed of three (3) individuals chosen by the President or the President's designee, in consultation with Faculty Executive Committee. The decision of the President is final.

ALL GRIEVANCES SHALL BE PROCESSED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The employee shall submit a written grievance to the President within ten (10) working days after receipt of the determination of the Faculty Executive Committee.

- 2. If a Special Grievance Committee is appointed to hear the petition, the Committee shall hold a grievance hearing within ten (10) working days after its receipt of the grievance petition.
- 3. The Special Grievance Committee will invite all concerned parties to the hearing. The faculty member may invite a non-legal advisor to be present.
- 4. The Special Grievance Committee must render a written decision within five (5) working days after the hearing, which will be distributed to all concerned parties.
- 5. The President may take into consideration the recommendation of the Special Grievance Committee and will make the final decision.
- 6. If the matter cannot be resolved by the President, the employee may appeal to the Board of Trustees of Elyon College, 1400 West 6th Street, Brooklyn, NY 11204
- If the grievance is not settled at the institutional level the complaint may be filed with the New York State Education Department, State Education Building, 89 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12234 or the Accrediting Council for Continuing Education & Training (ACCET), 1722 N Street, NW, Washington, DC 20036, Phone: (202) 955-1113, Fax: (202) 955-1118 or (202) 955-5306 or submit the complaint to ACCET in writing via the online form on the ACCET website https://accet.org/about-us/contact-us.

Termination Of Appointment

A faculty member shall hold his or her position during each contractual period pending behavior consonant with carrying out his or her duties and efficient service, and shall not be removed except for cause.

DISMISSAL FOR CAUSE SHALL BE:

- 1. Immoral character, sexual harassment or other conduct unbecoming a teacher;
- 2. Inefficiency, incompetence, physical or mental disability or neglect of duty;
- 3. Insubordination;
- 4. Failure to perform administrative or academic duties or breach of terms of an appointment;
- 5. Failure to teach in a manner consistent with the College's standards.

A faculty member dismissed for cause shall be entitled to a hearing, if requested in writing, before the Committee on Promotions and Personnel, as soon as possible. (See Due Process Above.) Unsatisfactory performance will lead to non-reappointment of academic duties. Other reasons for termination of appointment shall be:

- 6. Financial difficulties on the part of the College;
- 7. Departmental reorganization, which permanently eliminates the position of the faculty member.

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE WILL BE PRECEDED BY:

- 8. Discussions between the faculty member and appropriate administrative officers to seek a mutual settlement.
- 9. A statement of reasons framed with reasonable particularity by the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs or his/her delegate

RESIGNATION

A faculty member who has decided to resign from the College should notify his/her department once a decision has been made. The faculty member should submit a letter of resignation to the department Chair and to the President. The letter should include the effective date of resignation and the reason(s) for resigning.

In the event of the death of an employee, it is requested that a family member notify the College as soon as possible.

EXIT INTERVIEW

An employee who either resigns or is terminated from the employment of Elyon College should report to the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Services for an exit interview.

Faculty Benefits

YOUR BENEFIT PROGRAMS:

- Fringe Benefits
- Health insurance
- COBRA
- Short Term Disability
- Workers Compensation
- Unemployment Insurance
- Library, Computer Lab
- Holidays
- Leaves of Absence
- Jury Duty

FRINGE BENEFITS

HEALTH INSURANCE

Full time faculty of the College and their dependents are eligible to join the employee paid Group Health Insurance program. The employee is responsible for filling out a form and returning it to the Department of Accounting and Human Resources within 30 days of employment or coverage may be delayed. Coverage is not automatic. Premiums are deducted from the employee's paycheck on a pre-tax basis.

An employee who marries or has a child while employed at Elyon College can add his/her spouse or child on the health coverage plan by filling out a form within 30 days of the event. Coverage is not automatic.

If you have not joined the medical plan and wish to do so, you can enroll every year during the open enrollment period, which is the month of September. At this time, you can also add a dependent.

COBRA

As per the COBRA Act of 1986, the Federal Law requires Elyon College to provide extended health care coverage to employees and their dependents under certain qualifying events. The employee or dependent pays the full cost of coverage at Elyon's group rates. Elyon provides each employee who terminates his employment with the College with a written notice describing rights granted under COBRA. The notice contains important information about the employee's rights and obligations.

You and your dependents are eligible to continue receiving health insurance coverage through Elyon College for 18 months as follows:

- Resignation or termination of employment for reasons other than gross misconduct;
- Reduction of employee's hours;
- Leave of absence.

COBRA coverage is available for 29 months for the following individuals:

• Employees and their dependents, when employees terminate their employment while disabled.

In addition, COBRA coverage is available for 36 months for the following individuals:

- Spouses and dependents of covered deceased employees.
- Divorced or legally separated spouses and dependents of covered employees.
- Spouses and dependents of employees covered by Medicare.
- Dependent children who would no longer be covered because they have reached the age of 19 or are full-time students who have reached the age of 25.

The HIPAA Act of 1996 made three important changes to the COBRA Act.

- An employee who becomes disabled during the first 60 days of COBRA coverage is entitled to 29 months of coverage. Coverage also applies to the employee's dependents.
- A child born to, or adopted by an employee who is receiving COBRA is also entitled to COBRA.

HIPAA limits a group health plan's ability to impose pre-existing condition exclusions. Therefore, COBRA coverage can be terminated when the COBRA beneficiary becomes covered under another group health plan whose pre-existing condition exclusion will not apply to the beneficiary under the new HIPAA rules.

SHORT-TERM DISABILITY

The short-term disability plan provides for salary continuation after an employee has been ill or disabled for 7 consecutive calendar days. STD benefits commence on the eighth calendar day and continue for a maximum of 26 weeks, as substantiated by medical documentation from a licensed physician, stating the medical reasons the employee is unable to work and the approximate length of time during which s/he will be disabled. The plan pays 50% of weekly salary up to \$170 per week on a weekly salary of \$340. The employee must use his/her sick time before going on short-term disability.

Successive periods of disability due to the same or related illness or injury will be considered as one continuous period of disability if they are separated by less than 14 days of active return to work status.

Successive periods of disability due to two separate causes of illness or injury will be considered as two separate periods of disability, regardless of the length of time between active return to work status.

This benefit is FICA and Medicare taxable.

WORKERS COMPENSATION

New York State Law requires insurance coverage for injuries sustained on the job. Elyon employees are covered by Workers Compensation. If you are injured on the job in the normal course of your employment, seek medical attention at once and report your injury to the Accounting and Human Resources Department within 24 hours. This department will provide you with the appropriate accident form, which must be filled out and forwarded to the Workers Compensation insurance within thirty days of the accident.

Workers Compensation will pay you two thirds of your salary up to \$400 per week on a weekly salary of \$600 as long as you remain disabled. This benefit is not taxable.

SOCIAL SECURITY

Elyon College employees are covered by Social Security which is paid by the employer and the employee in accordance with Federal Law.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

Under New York State law, if your employment is terminated for reasons other than misconduct, you are eligible to receive unemployment benefits. You must apply in person to the Unemployment Office nearest to your home.

This insurance is provided to you at no cost. If you resign or you are terminated for misconduct, you are not eligible to receive unemployment benefits.

This benefit is considered to be taxable income.

SUPPORT OF FACULTY RESEARCH

Limited funds are available to encourage faculty participation in professional conferences and seminars. Adjunct faculty who are not affiliated with another institution of higher education on a full-time basis and are participating in the name of Elyon College may also be eligible. Eligible faculty should submit a copy of the proposed program with documentation of the expenses to the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs for approval.

LIBRARY AND COMPUTER LAB

Library and Computer lab facilities (on a space available basis) are available to all employees of Elyon College.

HOLIDAYS

- Independence Day
- Tisha B'Av
- Labor Day
- Rosh Hashanah
- Yom Kippur
- Succot First two days and last two days
- Thanksgiving
- New Year's Day
- President's Day
- Purim
- Passover First two days and last two days
- Memorial Day
- Shavuot

A more detailed list is provided in the college catalog.

Faculty Responsibilities And Class Management

FACULTY AS ROLE MODELS

Faculty members are expected to act at all times in a manner befitting members of the teaching profession. Faculty members are expected to maintain and exhibit the highest level of integrity in all of their behaviors. They should conduct themselves with respect for others and should serve as models of the teaching profession to their students and their community.

Dress and deportment often characterize the person, and interpersonal relationships mark the nature and effectiveness of institutions. Therefore, appropriate attire, courtesy and cooperation at all times with students, staff and colleagues, are considered essential to the well being of the College. Professionalism of a high order should be Elyon's hallmark.

Providing the best climate within which an Elyon student can learn and grow intellectually is a major professional contribution that the faculty member can make to the development of students. This includes frequent and active presence on campus, student counseling and advising, and participation in the activities that promote interaction between student life and the academic environment.

TEACHING DUTIES

The Office of the Dean/Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs makes assignment of courses to the faculty after consultation with the Department Chair. No changes in class schedule may be instituted without permission of the Department Chair and the Dean/Associate Dean. Final examinations will be given only on those dates approved by the Dean/Associate Dean.

Faculty members must meet their classes in the room assigned. If for any reason a room is not satisfactory, the instructor should inform the Administrative office. Under no condition should instructors change the room without the approval of the appropriate administrators.

FACULTY ATTENDANCE AND PUNCTUALITY

Each faculty member has the responsibility to meet all assigned classes. If, for any reason, a faculty member anticipates missing a class, the faculty member must notify the Department Chair, the Dean's office and all affected students at the earliest possible time.

It is the faculty member's obligation and responsibility to make up any classes missed. Students are instructed to wait 20 minutes for a faculty member to arrive.

OFFICE HOURS

Full-time faculty members report their office hours to the Office of the Dean/Associate Dean and advise their students as to their availability at the beginning of each semester. In creating office hours, the faculty member should be mindful of the needs and schedules of students. Each faculty member should keep in mind that maintaining office hours represents a serious commitment. An office schedule for a full-time faculty member is six hours per week. Adjunct faculty should also make suitable arrangements for student consultation and advisement.

ADVISEMENT

Since at this time we are a relatively small college, most of the advisement is carried out by the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs and the Admissions and Judaic Studies Program Coordinator. Academic help is provided through peer tutoring, outside tutors will be recommended when necessary, and remediation help is available by instructors. A referral list of available student

support provided by various community social and health service agencies is available at the schools administrative office.

MONITORING OF STUDENT PROGRESS

Students' academic progress in each course is monitored and assessed by the instructor and reviewed at the end of each semester by the Dean/Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs. However if the instructor feels that a student is struggling or failing, the instructor will bring the situation to the attention of the Associate Dean who then addresses the situation.

The faculty member should contact students who attend irregularly, or who stop attending. The Dean of Academic and Student Affairs should be notified immediately of students who have problems with attendance.

SUSPENSION OF CLASSES BECAUSE OF SNOW

Decisions on closing the College because of snow or other emergencies are made by the Office of the President. Announcements of cancellations will be broadcast on radio station WOR-710 AM and their website, www.WOR.com. In general, if the Public Schools in Brooklyn are closed, Elyon College will also be closed.

ATTENDANCE AT FACULTY MEETINGS AND FUNCTIONS

Full-time faculty members are expected to attend all Faculty Conference meetings, departmental meetings, meetings of any committees of which they are members, as well as academic convocations, and commencement exercises. Adjunct faculty members are also encouraged to attend all faculty Conference and departmental meetings, commencement, and other functions.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND CLERICAL REQUIREMENTS

<u>Course Syllabus</u> - A course syllabus for every course must be filed by the faculty member with the Dean and his/her Department Chair. The course syllabus should be distributed to the students at the beginning of each semester and should specify objectives, main topics of study, requirements and assignments, test dates and the criteria used to evaluate student performance. A current bibliography is to be included with the course outline.

<u>Class Rosters</u>- Students are admitted to courses at the beginning of the semester only upon presentation of the proper registration materials. Rosters provided by the Administrative Office should be carefully reviewed by the faculty member and discrepancies reported. Students who are attending, but do not appear on the roster must report to the Director of Administration. Faculty should verify the listing of all students who ever attended their classes, even if for a brief period. All instructors must keep attendance records for all class sessions.

<u>Final Grades</u> - All final grades shall be submitted in writing to the Dean/Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs on the course grading sheet prepared for that purpose **within three business days** after the final examinations. The course grading sheets are then submitted to the Administrative Office, where the Administrative Support Staff enters the grades in each student's file. Students must receive their final course grades in a timely manner.

The final grade sheet should not be mailed, except for unusual circumstances; however, if mailed, it should be sent to the "Attention of the Director of Administration" <u>via Certified Mail, return-receipt requested</u>. A photocopy of the submitted grading sheets should he retained by the professor for possible future reference.

The completed final examinations, end-term papers, and/or any other material required of students for the determination of their final grade should be submitted to the Dean/Associate Dean's Office. Final examinations (and/or other related material) will be kept on file for six months from the time the final is given. The completed final exams must be made available for viewing by the students upon their request.

Two blank copies of the administered final examination should be submitted to the Dean/Associate Dean's Office. Students should be advised that the College policy is not to give out grades over the telephone. The College will forward an official grade report to each student. However, a student who desires to know his/her grade sooner than receipt of the official report may submit a request to the respective faculty member.

NOTIFICATION RIGHTS UNDER FERPA WITH RESPECT TO STUDENT RECORDS

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) afford students 18 years of age or older certain rights with respect to their educational records.

- 1. Students enrolled at Elyon College shall have the right to inspect and review the contents of their education records, within a reasonable amount of time but not more than 45 days after the institution receives the request for access. Students may request to review their education records by submitting a written request identifying the record(s) the student wishes to review to the Registrar. The institution will arrange for access and notify the student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
- 2. Parental access to a student's record will be allowed by the Elyon College without prior consent if: (1) the student has violated a law or the institution's rules or policies governing alcohol or substance abuse, if the student is under 21 years old; or (2) the information is needed to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals in an emergency.
- 3. A student's education records are defined as files, materials, or documents, including those in electronic format, that contain information directly related to the student and are maintained by the institution, except as provided by law. Access to a student's education records is afforded to school officials who have a legitimate educational interest in the records. A school official is defined as a person employed or engaged by the institution in an administrative, supervisory, academic or support staff position (including law enforcement unit and health staff); a person or company (including its employees) with whom the school has contracted (such as an attorney, auditor, consultant or collection agent); a trustee serving on a governing board; or a person assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record to fulfill his or her professional responsibility or commitment to the school.
- 4. Students may request that the institution amend any of their education records, if they believe the record contains information that is inaccurate, misleading or in violation of their privacy rights. The request for change must be made in writing and delivered to the Director of Administration, and must identify the part of the record the student wants changed and the reason for the requested change stated fully.
- 5. Directory information is student information that the institution may release to third parties without the consent of the student. Elyon College has defined directory information as the student's name, address(es), telephone number(s), e-mail address, birth date and place, program undertaken, dates of attendance, honors and awards, photographs and credential awarded. If a student does not want his or her directory information to be released to third parties without the student's consent, the student must present such a request in writing to the

Director of Administration within 45 days of the student's enrollment or by such later date as the institution may specify. Under no circumstance may the student use the right to opt out to prevent the institution from disclosing that student's name, electronic identifier, or institutional e-mail address in a class in which the student is enrolled.

- 6. The written consent of the student is required before personally identifiable information from education records of that student may be released to a third party, unless the disclosure is otherwise allowed under an express FERPA exception to disclosure or is required by law.
- 7. A student who believes that Elyon College has violated his or her rights concerning the release of or access to his or her records has the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202-5901

Grading Practices

GRADES

Passing grades for credit bearing courses are "A-D". For an expanded description of these grades, see Grade Values below.

Failing grades are "F" and "WF". "F"- Student attended class regularly but did not achieve passing grades on examinations or assignments.

In order to graduate from our college, students must attain a cumulative grade point average of 2.0 "C" or greater.

GRADE VALUES:

Letter Grade A+	Percentage Equivalency 96-100	Grade Point Equivalency 4.0
A	92.5-95.9	4.0
A-	90-92.4	3.7
B+	85-89.9	3.4
В	82.5-84.9	3.0
В-	80-82.4	2.9
C+	76-79.9	2.5
C	70-75.9	2.0
D	65.0-69.9	1.0
F	64.9 or below	0.0
W	Withdraw	NA
WF	Withdraw/Fail	0.0
I	Incomplete	NA

OFFICIAL WITHDRAWALS

A student is considered officially withdrawn from Elyon College

- 1. When the student gives written or verbal notice of withdrawal to Elyon College
- 2. When the student is terminated by Elyon College by applying Elyon College's attendance, conduct, or satisfactory academic progress policy

WITHDRAWAL FROM A COURSE

A student may withdraw from a course up until two weeks following the mid-term reporting period. The student will receive a "W" on her/his transcript. This grade bears no grade point equivalent, and is not added into the end-of-term average for a student. However, if the student withdraws two weeks beyond mid-term she/he receives a "WF" for the course. A "WF" carries the grade point equivalent of "0" and is calculated in the final grade point average of the student.

INCOMPLETES FOR INDIVIDUAL COURSES

A grade of incomplete is given when a student, who has been making satisfactory progress in a course, experiences an unexpected hardship or illness making it impossible for her/him to complete the course.

If a student received an "I" in a given course at the end of the term, she/he is required to remove this condition to the satisfaction of her/his instructor by the end of the first month of the following term. Failure to do so will result in a failing grade for the course.

CLASS ATTENDANCE

The classroom experience is considered an important part of the education being offered at Elyon College. Attendance records may be a significant factor in advising students of their progress in a course. Student attendance may be taken into consideration in assigning grades and students should be so informed. Absences for more than ten percent of scheduled classes may result in failure, grade reduction, or other academic sanctions or disciplinary measures. For these reasons faculty are expected to maintain attendance records and submit their attendance reports to the appropriate administrative offices as requested. Faculty must report the last date of attendance of students who receive "W" or "WF" grades. See the policies and procedures on Monitoring and Documenting Attendance at the end of this handbook.

<u>Tardiness or Early Leave</u> – Coming habitually late to class or leaving early can be disruptive to all. Students are considered late if they come 10 or more minutes after class has begun and they are considered as leaving early if they leave 10 or more minutes before class is over. Therefore, if this becomes a chronic problem, the instructor has the right to mark a student absent for the whole period she/he enters late or leaves early. Our goal is to prepare students for the business world, a community where punctuality is a key to success. Three tardies or three early leaves constitute one absence.

Students who miss class often should be advised and notified that she/he has reached a certain number of absences. Students are apprised of their status regarding absences.

Excused Absences: The student is responsible for supplying verification for the following excusable absences: personal illness or disabling injury, birth/death in the family, personal/family crisis or late start registration. Excused absences count as an absence when calculating the 80 percent attendance requirement.

GRADE CHALLENGE

In the event of a grade challenge by a student, he/she will be advised that the first step, which must be instituted within thirty days of receipt of the student's official grade notice, consists of the submission of a formal written request to the faculty member for a change of grade. The faculty member should respond to the student's request within fourteen days of receiving it. Only after the student's appeal to the faculty member has been rejected, will the appeal be brought to the Departmental Chairperson or the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs for attention. If a faculty member denies the student's challenge to the grade awarded, the chairperson may overturn the faculty member's decision if the

faculty member's refusal was clearly erroneous or arbitrary and capricious. The appeal to the Chairperson or Associate Dean should be made within seven days of the final response of the faculty member. The student's appeal must be typed or clearly written and include the following:

- A statement clearly identifying the course, the course number, the semester when the course was taken, and the instructor.
- The dates, times and places when the student appealed his/her grade to the instructor, and information regarding the statements exchanged between the two concerning the grade challenge.
- The exact grade being contested, the reason for the complaint, and all documentation and facts that will be needed in order to make a decision concerning the grade.
- A copy of the appeal should also be submitted to the Office of the Dean for Academic and Student Affairs.

It must be made clear to the student that while the Chairperson or Associate Dean will hear an appeal of a grade challenge after the instructor has refused to change the grade, the burden of proof is on the student. The student must demonstrate that the instructor's decision was clearly erroneous or arbitrary and capricious. The student should present all the necessary documentation.

The Chairperson or Associate Dean will respond to the student in writing, within thirty days of receipt of the student's written appeal.

Leave Policies

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

A leave of absence without pay may be arranged by giving the Chairperson and the Dean at least one semester advance notice in writing. Final approval will rest with the Dean.

A full-time person will generally be granted a leave of absence, provided a suitable replacement can be appointed or other arrangements made to handle all teaching assignments.

MILITARY LEAVE

RESERVE ACTIVE DUTY TRAINING

An employee may receive a leave of absence for performance of active duty with the National Guard or the U.S. Armed Forces Reserves in accordance with NYS Law. An employee who is required to participate in two (2) weeks annual training as part of a military service program will be paid the difference between his/her regular salary and the pay received for the reserve training.

ACTIVE DUTY

In the case of a reservist called to active duty, the college, in compliance with the Federal Veteran's Reemployment Rights Law, will rehire veterans to their former job or job with similar status & pay. The veteran must apply for reemployment within 90 days of discharge.

BENEFITS

Elyon will not pay medical or other benefits for the employee while on leave for reserve military duty (except for the two weeks mentioned above). However, benefits will be reinstated upon reemployment.

If the employee wishes to maintain coverage in the Elyon plan, he/she may do so by paying the full group plan cost for individual and/or dependent coverage.

FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

The 1993 Family and Medical leave Act applies to any employee who has been employed for at least 12 months and 1,250 hours. Employees eligible for family medical leave are entitled to a leave of absence for the birth of a child, adoption of a child, personal illness or illness in the immediate family for a period up to three months without pay. The College defines immediate family as the employee's spouse, parent, stepparent, grandparent, child, stepchild, grandchild and sibling.

You will be required to provide appropriate medical or other documentation to certify your leave request. This certification should be provided to the College as far in advance of the leave as possible. Your medical insurance benefits will continue while you are on leave, as long as you pay your monthly premium. It is important that you remain in contact with your supervisor during this leave period.

If you do not return to work or contact your supervisor on your intended date of return, then you will be considered to have voluntarily resigned from the college. If the leave was required due to your personal health problems, you must obtain a written authorization to return to work from your physician and present it to your supervisor or the Accounting and Human Resources Department before you resume your normal work responsibilities.

After you return from family or medical leave, you will be reinstated to your former position or to an equivalent position.

SICK LEAVE

Full-time faculty and staff begin to accumulate paid sick leave upon completion of their first full-time monthly pay period. Full-time employees accrue sick leave time at the rate of one day per pay period (assumes a monthly pay period). This is equivalent to 12 days per year.

If you work in NYC for more than 80 hours a year, you can earn up to 40 hours of sick leave each year to care for yourself or a family member. Sick leave is accrued at the rate of one hour for every 30 hours worked, up to a maximum of 40 hours of sick leave per calendar year.

Employees will receive which ever policy is more beneficial to them under their specific circumstances.

Sick time may be used in the event that an employee is ill and unable to report to work. Sick leave may also be used for doctor or dentist appointments in hour units. In certain instances, a medical report may be requested. In case of prolonged illness, a physician's report is required at the end of each month.

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

In the event of death of an immediate member of the employee's family the college grants up to a fivework day paid leave.

The college defines immediate family as the employee's spouse, parent, step-parent, grandparent, child, stepchild, grandchild and sibling.

A two-day leave with pay is granted in the event of death of the employee's spouse's parent, stepparent, grandparent and sibling.

Employees may, with their supervisor's approval, get additional unpaid time off if necessary, or use their vacation personal days.

JURY DUTY

Full-time employees called for jury duty will receive their full salary for a period up to seven days, unless they have already served on jury duty and such service ended less than 30 months from the start of the current service.

Employees must present the jury duty summons to the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs or to the Director of Administration. If an employee receives salary from Elyon College while on jury duty, monies received from state or federal authorities as compensation for jury duty service must be submitted to the Director of Administration

The Associate Dean or the Director of Administration should be consulted when a jury duty notice is received. Postponements are available and sometimes necessary if such duty should occur during a peak period in the department.

Faculty Conference

FACULTY BY-LAWS

The academic governance of the college is the responsibility of the faculty upon the delegation of authority by the Board of Trustees and the President of Elyon College. The faculty conducts its business through the **Faculty Conference**.

The following are the general objectives of academic governance:

- 1. That faculty should be organized so as to maintain standards of academic excellence, intellectual growth and sensitivity to student needs.
- 2. Those decisions concerning admissions, curriculum, grading, graduation requirements, academic standing of students, and other matters affecting academic quality of the College be the clear responsibility of faculty.
- 3. That faculty has a voice and play a role in all matters affecting faculty welfare, appointments, promotions and retention.
- 4. That the principles of academic freedom are maintained and due process is accorded to all faculty in decisions affecting them.
- 5. That faculty and administration meet and consult on a regular basis in order to establish objectives, set priorities, evaluate outcomes and plan for the future.
- 6. That the faculty and administration foster and maintain an academic climate conducive to scholarly activity and research, professional growth and achievement.
- 7. Those policies be established to encourage self and peer evaluation, curricular innovation, experimentation and growth, and to enhance teaching effectiveness and personal scholarship.

POWERS OF THE CONFERENCE

Subject to the reserved power of the Trustees and the President, the Faculty Conference makes recommendations on matters of student, faculty, and academic policies.

The Conference may recommend the establishment and alteration of degree program requirements and academic regulations. Approval or disapproval is by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting.

It shall be the duty of the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs to approve the establishment of new

academic programs. It shall be the duty of the conference to recommend to the President candidates for degrees.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE CONFERENCE

MEMBERSHIP:

The Faculty Conference is composed of the President, the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs, the Director of Library Services, the Chairs of the various departments and all members of the academic staff holding full time appointments as professor, associate or assistant professor, instructor or lecturer. In addition, the Faculty Conference includes those members of the administration who have been designated as members by majority vote of the Faculty Conference. Every member of the Conference is a voting member.

OFFICERS:

The Chairperson and presiding officer of the Conference is the Dean of Academic and Student Affairs. In the absence of the Dean or designee, the Secretary shall supervise the election of a Chair for that meeting.

The Secretary of the Conference shall be nominated by at least three members of the conference, approved by a majority of the Conference, and shall serve for a two-year term.

Among the duties of the Secretary shall be: the official reception, acknowledgment and, if relevant, dissemination of formal communications to the Conference, the scheduling and announcement of meetings, the preparation in consultation with the Dean of the agenda and the distribution of minutes, and the periodic preparation of a digest of Conference resolutions. The Secretary shall also maintain a roster of the voting members of the Conference.

MEETINGS

REGULAR MEETINGS

With approval of the Dean/Associate Dean, faculty meetings are scheduled at least twice a year.

SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings may be called by the President, the Dean, or by a signed petition of 35% of the faculty.

AGENDA

An agenda for each meeting shall be established in consultation with the Dean/Associate Dean and shall be circulated before the meeting. The agenda may be modified at the meeting.

RULES OF ORDER

Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order. Quorum: A quorum shall consist of 50% of the full-time faculty.

NON-MEMBERS

Non-members may be invited to attend a specific Conference meeting upon a motion passed by a majority of those members present at a meeting. Adjunct faculty members are encouraged to attend, having voice but no vote. Adjuncts may serve on special faculty committees as full voting members.

Policy and Procedures

Professional Growth and Development for Faculty and Staff

OBJECTIVE: To ensure that faculty and staff grow professionally to enhance their instruction and service to the students

RESPONSIBILITY:

The President has overall responsibility for professional growth and development for faculty and staff.

The Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs is responsible for professional growth and development of faculty. The Associate Network (IT) Specialist is responsible for the professional growth and development of the IDL faculty.

The Director of Administration is responsible for the professional growth and development of non-teaching staff.

PROCEDURES:

Elyon College encourages and supports faculty development and relationships with colleagues and professionals in their area of expertise.

Faculty and staff are encouraged to maintain memberships in professional organizations.

Faculty is also encouraged to engage in research projects that are closely related to faculty member's discipline, and become proficient in the use of technology as it applies to his/her discipline. Faculty who will teach IDL courses should get onboarded by using Canvas or working with the Elyon College Associate Network (IT) Specialist

The primary emphasis for professional development is in-service training. In-service training is provided to faculty twice a year by guest speakers and members of Elyon College faculty and administration.

Faculty is encouraged to use selected printed material and online resources related to professional growth available at Elyon College.

EVALUATION: The policy for professional development of faculty and staff is evaluated by administration and faculty to ensure its effectiveness.

RESULTS: Feedback from the evaluation is used to determine the effectiveness of the policy and procedures. Changes are made accordingly.

Policy and Procedures

Monitoring and Documenting Attendance

OBJECTIVE: To instill in the students the importance of attendance to their success at Elyon College

RESPONSIBILITY: Dean/Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs

PROCEDURES:

Monitoring

- 1. Students who are absent for unspecified reasons will be contacted to ascertain the reason for their absence.
- 2. Students who exhibit irregular attendance may cause their grades to decline and their continued enrollment at the College may be in jeopardy.
- 3. It is the student's responsibility to make up any missed course work.
- 4. Student attendance is taken into consideration in assigning grades, and students are informed of this in the course syllabus.
- 5. Students must maintain an overall 80 percent attendance rate in order to graduate.
- 6. Absences for more than 10 percent of scheduled classes may result in failure, grade reduction, other academic sanctions, or disciplinary measures.
- 7. The student is responsible for supplying verification for the following excusable absences: personal illness or disabling injury, death in the family, family crisis or late start registration.
- 8. Students who are absent for 1 or more weeks will be advised and notified that she/he has reached a dangerous level of absences.
- 9. These students are required to discuss with his/her instructor how the missing classes and work can be made up.
- 10. All missing work must be made up in order to bring the attendance to the satisfactory level.
- 11. Students who are absent for 2 or more consecutive weeks or 10 percent of scheduled classe without notifying the school of the causes of the absence will be automatically withdrawn from Elyon College.
- 12. Coming habitually late to class or leaving early can be disruptive to all.
- 13. Students are considered late if they come 10 or more minutes after class has begun, and they are considered as leaving early if they leave 10 or more minutes before class is over.
- 14. Three or more tardiness or early leaves is equal to one absence. Excused absences count as an absence when calculating the 80 percent attendance requirement.
- 15. The goal is to prepare students for the business world, a community where punctuality is a key to success.
- 16. For the IDL model attendance and related academic performance is monitored by the instructor and all standards are uniformly applied. IDL synchronous sessions are monitered and documented in real time and asynchronous sessions are monitered and tracked by the platforms' recorded students' log-in time data and via the required time-to-complete the task calculation for academic work completion.

Documenting

- 1. Instructors are provided with an attendance book with daily attendance sheets on which latenesses and absences are recorded.
- 2. At the end of each week, the Assistant Dean for Administrative Operations collects the sheets from the brick-and-mortar sessions and the information from the IDL platform for entry into the attendance spreadsheet.
- 3. The Assistant Dean for Administrative Operations reviews the attendance and advises the Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs of any students approaching the minimum benchmarks for attendance as set by our policy.
- 4. The Associate Dean will notify such students in writing of their standing and make an appointment to speak with them on an individual basis.
- 5. At the end of each month, a copy of the each student's attendance is placed in his/her file.
- 6. At the end of the program, a final attendance record is placed in the student's file.

EVALUATION: Procedures for attendance is evaluated by the Faculty, Administration, Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs, Assistant Dean for Administrative Operations, and President to ensure the effectiveness of this procedure.

<u>**RESULTS:**</u> Feedback from evaluation will be used to determine the effectiveness of this policy and procedures. Changes are made accordingly.

Policy and Procedures

Supervision and Evaluation of Faculty and Staff

<u>OBJECTIVE:</u> To provide a system for evaluation of faculty and staff that meets the needs of the students and the College's objectives and goals

RESPONSIBILITY: President supervises and evaluates administration personnel. Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs supervises and evaluates faculty. The Director of Administration supervises and evaluates staff. The aforementioned management officials are responsible to ensure the quality of faculty and staff and allocating the requisite budgetary resources to ensure successful student learning outcomes.

PROCEDURES:

Faculty

- 1. The Associate Dean for Academic and Student Affairs regularly observes faculty in a classroom situation, documents the observation in a written report, discusses the observation with the faculty member, and files the report in the faculty member's personnel file.
- 2. Faculty members are initially evaluated on an annual basis for three years.
- 3. Instructors that are new to teaching in IDL teaching style will be observed biannually in their first year.
- 4. Subsequent to three evaluations or great length of service, faculty may be evaluated less frequently, but not less than once every two years.
- 5. New faculty members are observed in the classroom within the first six weeks of teaching and again a month later.
- 6. The Office of the Dean or Department Chairperson or the faculty member may initiate a request for faculty observation.
- 7. Faculty members are presented with a copy of the observation form and will be given an opportunity to respond in writing concerning the observation.
- 8. The Associate Dean also maintains copies of observations.
- 9. Faculty is evaluated for overall
 - performance of responsibilities including
 a. Instructional skills and strategies
 - b. Classroom management and preparedness including structuring material in a logical format easily accessible to the IDL student
 - c. Up to date syllabus which includes course schedule and all due dates
 - d. Moderating discussion and
 - encouraging interactions
 - e. Ability to use the IDL platform tools/features and explain them to students
 - f. Evaluation of student work in a
 - timely manner, including online assignments, discussion boards, etc.
 g. Professionalism
 - g. Professionalism
 h. Verify attendance by taking roll or through activity online
 - i. Classroom observationsj. Student feedback/evaluations

k. Responding to student emails

regarding any issues/problems

l. Making sure that students know

what online resources are available to them

m. Ensures regular and substantive interaction between IDL student and instructor, students, and peers, and with course material/assignments

n. Interact with the Associate Dean and Associate Network Specialist addressing and resolving any issues that may arise in the delivery of IDL instruction, as applicable

Non-teaching Staff

4.

1. Administration is evaluated formally by the President at least yearly and is provided with guidance and support in order to ensure a high level of performance.

2. Non-teaching staff is observed formally at least yearly and is provided with guidance and support in order to ensure a high level of performance.

3. Non-teaching staff is evaluated for overall performance of responsibilities including

a. Job knowledge
b. Quality of work
c. Productivity
d. Dependability

e. Attendance
f. Relations with others
g. Commitment to safety

h. Supervisory ability (if applicable)
The findings of this evaluation are

discussed and reviewed with employees who have the opportunity to explain, accept, or reject findings.

5. If any recommendations are necessary, the findings are evaluated and acted upon accordingly.

EVALUATION: The policy for supervision and evaluation of faculty and staff is evaluated by administration, faculty, and staff for its effectiveness.

RESULTS: Feedback from the evaluation is used to determine effectiveness of the policy and procedures. Changes are made accordingly.

FORMS

ELYON COLLEGE FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA

Planning

- Uses daily lessons plans
- · Has clear objectives for each lesson according to stated course and topics objectives
- Plans program modifications when indicated

Instructional Skills and Strategies

- Uses a variety of activities and resources to maximize time on task
- Uses a range of methodology appropriate to student needs
- Asks clear, precise, thought-provoking, well-distributed questions
- Uses questions and language appropriate to the level of the student
- Is well organized in presentation and uses time effectively
- Uses suitable motivation for learning
- Uses program modification when appropriate
- Designs student activities and assignments directly related to learning objectives
- Diagnoses learning needs
- Implements teaching strategies consistent with the syllabi and student needs

Classroom Management

- Exhibits a confident manner and is in control of the class
- Uses firm, fair, and consistent form of discipline
- Uses a clear set of guidelines/rules and consequences for behavior
- Consistently uses positive reinforcement
- Makes students aware of behavioral expectations
- Exhibits respect, kindness, and support
- Shows concern for the care of the equipment
- Keeps classroom clean and in order
- Effectively uses the space available to enhance the learning environment

Evaluation of Student Work

- · Clearly informs students how their work will be evaluated
- Evaluates student work appropriately for the level and ability of the student
- Checks the quality of student work regularly and requires correction of errors ad deemed appropriate
- Maintains records of student performance that are accurate, continuous, and current
- Uses evaluation results to plan further instruction
- Uses a variety of appropriate evaluation techniques
- Reports pupil progress to students, and appropriate agencies in an effective manner

Professionalism

- Is a cooperative, contributory member of the school
- Assumes responsibility for professional growth
- Exhibits professional deportment

ELYON COLLEGE ANNUAL FACULTY PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORM

Class Assignment:			
Date:			
	Exceeds Standards	Achieves Standards	Below Standards
Planning			
Instructional Skills and Strategies			
Classroom Management			
Evaluation of Student Work			
Professionalism			
Dependability			
Attendance			
Classroom Performance			
Overall Appraisal Rating			
Evaluator's Overall	Comments		

ELYON COLLEGEFACULTY CLASSROOM OBSERVATION FORM

Instructor:Subject:			
Date:			
	Effective	Needs	Not
		Improvement	Observed
A. Teaching Techniques			
Demonstrates mastery of content			
Explains clearly			
Solicits student participation			
 Provides positive reinforcement 			
Provides motivation			
Uses multi-sensory communication			
Measures outcomes			
B. Effective Planning			
 Planning and organization of activities 			
Sequence of material			
Use of instructional materials			
Pacing of lesson elements			
Immediate application of theory			
C. Student Relations			
 Lesson objective understood by students 			
Stimulates and maintains student interest			
Responds to student questions			
4. Creates a constructive learning atmosphere			
5. Accommodates students of varying levels			
D. Learning Environment			
Classroom is neat, orderly, and attractive			
Teacher maintains student comfort			
Distractions are minimized			
E. Comments			

Instructor's Signature

Date

Date

Evaluator's Signature

ELYON COLLEGESTUDENT COURSE EVALUATION

Date:	
Student Name:	
Instructor:	
Course:	
Please assist us with future course development	by checking the appropriate columns.

5=Strongly Agree 4=Agree 3=Neutral 2=Disagree 1=Strongly Disagree N/A=Does Not Apply

Instructor	5	4	3	2	1	N/A
My instructor spoke clearly and was easily understood.		-		_	•	14// 1
My instructor showed me ways to learn and motivated me.						
3. My instructor explained the subject matter until I understand it.						
4. My instructor is an expert in the subject.						
My instructor was well prepared and arrived on time for each class.						
6. My instructor stimulated my interest in the subject.						
7. My instructor was present and available for assistance.						
My instructor was interested in my success in this course.						
Course	5	4	3	2	1	N/A
I was actively involved in learning.		-		_	-	1 1111
10.The textbook and learning materials for this course were helpful and on an appropriate level.						
11. The course description accurately described the curriculum.						
12.The length of the course was appropriate for the material covered.						
13. The pace of the course was appropriate.						
14. The ratio of the instructors to students was adequate.						
15. Textbooks and handouts were useful and easy to understand.						
 Safety lectures and proper usage of equipment were addressed. 						
17. Assignments were relevant to the topics.						
18. There was a good balance between lectures and hands-on activities.						
19. Adequate time was provided for questions and discussion.						
20.I was challenged throughout the duration of the course.						
21.My expectations were met.						

1					
5	4	3	2	1	N/A
5	4	3	2	1	N/A
5	4	3	2	1	N/A
	5	5 4	5 4 3	5 4 3 2	5 4 3 2 1

ELYON COLLEGE

STUDENT SERVICES TUTORIAL ASSISTANCE

	TODAY'S DATE:	
STUDENT'S NAME	_ PHONE NUMBER	
PROGRAM		
Instructor's recommendation:		
Instructor's signature:		
Course (s) in which the student needs to be tutored:		
Assignments:		
Tutor assigned:	Date:	
Advisor:	Date:	

ELYON COLLEGE STUDENT ADVISORY FORM

STUDENT	DATE
REASON FOR CONFERENCE:	
Erratic attendance Excessive tardiness Deportment Financial aid	Academic progress Demeanor Other (explain below)
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS:	
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION TAKE	N OR SUGGESTION MADE TO STUDENT:
STUDENT RESPONSE:	
Student	acknowledges having read this form.
Advisor	Student

Note

Nothing contained herein shall modify or diminish the College's rights and prerogatives regarding faculty personnel decisions, including terminations, suspensions or lay-offs, as provided in this Handbook.

Acknow	ledgement	Form
ACKIIOW	leugement	1 01111

I hereby acknowledge that I received a copy of the Elyon College Faculty Handbook describing College policies and other pertinent facts related to my employment.

Name